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INITIAL UECIS ION 

By Complaint filed June 18 , 1979, and subsequently amended on 

September 14 , 1979, the U.S. Environmental Protec t ion Agency {Complpinant) 

charged l•lont~'s Environmental \services , Inc . {hereinafter J.ionty's) with 

violation of t~e Federal Insecticide, Fungicide , and Rodentici de Act, as 

r 

;,)~- / - . """ -· '7 

Amended {7 U.S . C. 136- 136{y) (1978)) herein referreci to as FIFRA, alleging 

that Respondent produced and, on June 13, 1979 , held for sale at its place 

of bus iness its product "The Eliminator", allegedly a "device" as defined 

by Sec tion 2(h), 7 U.S.C. 136(h) , which devica was misbranded in tnat t i1:.: 

label thereon bears statements \'lili cil are, in fact , f al se . Said statements 

are listed in subject Complai nt as follm·1s: 

{a) controls rats and mice; 

(o) also ilelps controt roaches and silverfish; 

{c) creates nervous disorientation in certain lower 
animals and tnereby brings about their death • 

(d) .effective control of pests; 

(e) proved effective in gra i n elevators, feed lots. 

Said Complaint further states Respondent has thereoy violated 

Section 12(a)(l)(F) , 7 U.S.C . 1:36j(a)( l )(F), wnicn provides as fo l lows: 

"Sect ion 12 . UNLA~JFUL ACTS. 

"(a) In general .--

" ( 1) Except ilS provid;!u i.>y suusection (o) . it sila ll 
L>t! unla\'lful for any person in any Stdte to 
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distribute, sell, offe r for sa l e , hold for 
sale , si1ip , de t iver fo r si1ipr;1ent, or receive 
and (11aving so received) delive r or offer to 
deliver , to any person--

"{F) any device w.1ici1 is 111isorantied." 

Section 2(q)(l{A) defines "misbranded'', providing: 

" (1) A pesticide is misbranded if--

11(A) its laoeling bears any statement, design, or 
graphic representation relative thereto or 
to its ingredients which is fa l se or mis 
leading in any particular;" 

\ 
. 

Section 2{p) defines LABEL and LABELil~G as follows: 

"(1) LA!3El. - -The tenn 'label ' means t he vtritten, 
printed, or gra phic matter on. or attach~d 
to, t he pesti cide or device or any of its 
containers or wrappers . 

"{2) LABELING.- - The tenn ' l abeling ' me.ans all labels 
and all other written, printed , or graphic 
mat ter--

"(A) accompanying t :1e pesticide or de vice at 
any time ; or 

"(B) t o l·<,lic,l r efe rence i s 111ade on t he label 
or in l i terc tur~? accO!iipanyi ng t ile 
p~stici dc or dev ice ... " 

Section 2{il) d~fi ning "device" states: 

• 

11 {il) OEVICE.- - Ttle term ' devi ce ' llll:!ans any instrunrcnt 
or contrivance (other t han a firearm) v10ich is 
intended for trapping, des.troying , rept:!lling, 
or mitigating any pest or oti1er fonn of plant 
or animal life •.. " 

On or about June 28 , 1979 Respondent f il ed its ans\'ter to tilt! 

Complaint which admits that on or about June 13 . 1979. it produced and 

held for sale "T:1e Eliminator" at i t s place of busines s in Houston, Texas; 

denies that said product is a devi ce under said Section Z {h )~ and denii:!S 

th a t "said dev i ce" i s misbranded. Said ans\'ter also alleges the follo\'ting: 

"Oased upon t•1onty's rn·m examinations, testing , actua l 
field experience, and the experience of custo111e r s of f·1onty's, 

; 
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said device does, througil tile dissemina tion of electromagnetic 
radiation, \'lard off and repel rats from an area of 1::10 foot radius 
'fr\Om the position at \'lhi.cn the device i s placed . ~1onty's 
denies tha t its "lai.>e 1 on said device" bears statements t hat 
its product wi 11 kill rodents . . . ". 

Complainant , at the Hearing herein held in Houston , Texas•on 

Wednesday , Sept ember 19, 1979, stated in the record (T. 5) as a pre 1 im

inary statement, that t he sole issue to be here determined is ti1e 

efficacy of Nanty ' s device "The Eliminator" in the control and ki ll ing 

of rodents and i nsects. \he parties have stipulated that , i f Complainan~'s 

position is sustained , an appropriate civil penalty under t i1e civil· 

penaliti es assessment guidelines is $1 , 250 .00 . · l·lonty 's {T. 6 and 7) 

agreed tnat Cotllplainant counsel had stated the "core issue" and_ tnat t ile 

ev idence at the l1eari ng is concerned "al1:~ost solely witn the issue of 

the efficacy of tile tool". J.lonty' s, i1o·.-1eve r, iildicated'that i t \·IOuld , 

in its proposed findings, conclusions , brief and argument , urge the 

·determination herein of v1i1ethe r a stop sa l e, use and r emoval orde r, 

dated June 13, 1979 (Complainant Ex~ibit 4) was validly issued . As said 

Exhibit 4 recitt:5 , on its face, that it is premised on l'lonty's violation 

of Section 12(a}{l)(F). decision on the sole or core issue vli ll be 

determinative of the further i s sue urged by Nanty's. 

Complainant's Exilibit 2 (pages 3 and 4) is a brochure obtained 

by Witness James S. Ha 11 i day .II, from one Larr'y Streck . a ci1emi s t with 

t he U.S . Environmen tal Protect i on Agency in Houston , Texas. At the . t irne 

he turned over the brochure to the witness, Streck stated that it had been 

obtai ned from a booth located in the Astrohall during a Li vestock Show 

on February 25 , 1979 . The brochure (page 4) l ists t ile name and address 

and te l ephone nurr.ber of "Monty's'' along \'lith the follo\'ling statement: 

"The El i tni nator, from Monty ' s Environmental Services, Inc. , 
is a revo luti onary electroni c device to control rats, r.1i ce 
and many insect pests--without poisons. 

.-. 
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"The pest does not have to come in direct contact with 
tile.instrument. Its effe<;tive range is up to l SO' radius , 
it can be adapted for AC or battery operation . and is 
water-proofed for outdoor installation. 

"Simply stated, the eliminator creates a mild rr.agnetic 
field \"1hici1 is absolutely har.nless to humans and domestic • 
animals. but which creates nervous disorientation in 
certain l oi'Jer animals and insects and thereby brings about 
their death. 

"Thi s means, for the first time you can have effective 
control of pests around your f ann, business, or home 
0ithout the dangers or continuing expense of poisons 
and traps. 

"The Eliminator \as been proved effective in grain eleva t ors . 
feedlots, restaurants. and other pl aces which often have 
difficult pest centro~ problems. • 

"Eliminate poisons, and control pests. G~ t t he Eli minator. 
i·lodel 500 now availab le. $500.00 ." 

f·1onty's Exhi i:l it !3 (T. 70} i s a b roc:wre descr i bi ng "The 

Eli minator" and states , (front s ide): 

"Tnz Elir:1inator 1~ 0!·1 CO.HROLS RATS A:IU f.HCE. ~.JITHOUT POISO;lS. 
PERIOD." 

Th e second paragraph states furt~er : 

"You can eliminate the prob l em in y our are a \'lit;, TH E 
ELHII;iATOR by f·lonty. Rodent Controller ... Tile one from 
(•lonty Environmental Services, Inc. , ti1 a t has been 
developed ti1rougi1 documented scientifi c rese arch. Tne 
one that contro l s rat and mice infestation, continually 
\'Ji thout poi sons. 

And on the back side of said Exhibit B ( T. 70 and 71): 

"S imply stated , the Eliminator by l·lonty, Roden t Controller, 
creates a magnetic field \"lith totally rando,n pulsations 
whicil is absolute ly i1arml 2ss to numans and domestic 
an imals, but witich creates net·vous disorientation in rats 
and mice and thereby brings about tileir continual elimi 
nation in tile affected area." 

The brochure continues with representation that t~ e described 

device can furnish effective control of rats and mice. 
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Honty's Exhibit A (also identified and received as Complainant's 
• 

Exhioit 10) is a letter dated i·\ay 9, 1979, addressed to l~ici1ael Wood of 

the US EPA fro:n Charles C. Gordon of tne tlational 6ureau of Standards (;~BS) 
• 

in Washington, D.C. Mr. Gordon appeared and testified at the Hearing. 

Said letter reports that NBS conducted a limited examination of subject 

pest control device (EPA Sample No. 150198). The bac'- of the unit was 

r emoved for internal examination and its components noted. Tile output of 

the unit. powered by 115 volt, 60Hz to 12 volt de, "apparently drives a 

single coil wound on a ferrous rod of about 1/2-inch diame ter and 4.-inches 

in length . " Wilen examined\ith a compass , a w~ak electromagnetic field 

(EMF) was detected. The field strength decreased rapidly with distance 

from t i1e unit and \'IOuld vary inversely \'lith the distance cubed (l/d3) 

from ~1e unit. At a distance of one meter, the EMf from the unit is 

much less than the earths field (0.5 gauss). These findings are not 

inconsistent with ti1e Technical Report of Dr. Rob.ert Benson who tested 

The Eliminator (l•lodel 600) (~~onty's Exhibit C). 

It ~>las further noted that t he internal compor.ents indicate 

si milarity to t he i·lagna .. Pulse and ~lature Shield devices (both of 1>1hich 

use three coils in a delta fonn) 1-1hile subject unit us es a single coil 

as i ts output. 

~lr . Gordon testified (T. 105) that he examined 14 pest control 

devices, furnished by US EPA, to investigate their el ec tromagnetic · 

characteristics, and the magnitude of the electromagne tic radiation 

(EI-1R). Of tile units examined, eignt units produced £1.1R of a sinusoidal 

format, that were driven from the nonnal wall plug, 115 volt, 150 cycles--

6~ Hertz source. The others were battery-operated and were controlled 

with digital circuitry and produced pulses and some steady-state field. 

The latter units w~re examined for pulse output on ly. The El i min ator 
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(3 models) \'las tested and determined t o be in the latter pulse group 
. 

(Group one~ , as were t\-JO units produced by other compani es. rlagna-Pulse 
.. 

and llature Shield, \'thi ch have the same number and type of components as 

The Eliminator. The components . observed in the aforementioned units, 

are not sophi sticated but can be obtained in the market place . Gordon 

testified, on cross examination, t hat the detected output--pulses--from 

The El iminator, Magna-Pulse and Nature Shield units was in ~1e same order 

of magnitude; when measured at a f ini te distance away, they produce 

\ 
magnetic fields t ha t are of a 10\·t level, in the tenth gauss (0.1 gauss) . 
range; some variation can exist between the respective units in the i r 

pulse-field output because the components used are comnonly plus or mi nus 

20 percent in accuracy; because tne i•lagna-Pulse and Nature Shield units 

were "potted" they \~e re unable to determine \'theti1er or not a de fie ld 

existed from those units. 

vlitness Dr. Halter E. lim·1ard is a professor of \·tildlife bio logy 

and has been employed by the University of Califorria at Davis for 32 years 

in the field of r odent contro l . He agreed to test devices whose outputs 

viere electromagnetic fi el ds, \'lith the restriction that research by him 

and hi s colleagues be devoted to t esti ng the principle and t~e concept. 

In this regard, his testimony stated (T. 144 ): 

"1 did not vtant to get into testing equipment because 
I ' ve been t hrough this before . They change the name , 
they change the l abe l, t hey change one wire and you 
have to go all through ~1ese expensive steps again." 

US EPA sent Dr. Howard electromagnetic devices sold for r odent 

control which were tested bi o logi cally under extreme ly contr ol led condi

tions involving wild rats - -as distinguished from laboratory rats-- and 

' house mice , trapped in the wild and t hen bred in the 1 aboratory to 

produce a population co1nposed of a gene poo l that wild anirnals nave. Tl1e 

experiments conducted by the witness, in collaboration witll Mr. Rex E. 
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Harsh resulted in tile submission by tnem of two reports : "~eport of 

Efficacy s·tudies of the Hature Shi~ld Rodent Control Device" (Complainant 

Exhibit 11) and "Report of Efficacy Studies of tile i·lagna-Pulse Rodent 

Control Device (Complainant Ex;1ibit 12). Dr. Ho~·:ard concluded (T. 151) 

that nothing on the order of abnorma l behavior 't'tas observed d.uring the 

course of their testing whicit they considered attributable to Et-lFs from 

tile electronic devices. He considers all electromagnetic devices no\'1 on 

the market to be worthless for the control of rodents in a 1·1arehouse, 
\ 

house , fields or other l ocations (T . 152}, as they have tested a broad 

field of magnetic devices (T . 154). There is a natural fluctuation that 

occurs in all rodent population and a decline at the time an H\F device 

is installed might influence one to i mproperly conclude that such declina 

can be attributed to said device. ~ith the small magnetic field 

attrit>uted to The Eliminator , Dr. Ho~·1a rd cc:1cluded that t;te statement 

contain~d in l·:onty 's brociture (Co~plainant Ex:1ibit 2, page 4) is "not 

Correct" . (T 1 ~0) • 0 • 

01·. Ho·.-tard 's Simulated Field Test, using a ilature Shield device, 

reported in Complainant Exhibit 11 , supra, disputes the claims of tne 

i~ature Shield brochure that "Contra-elusive magnetism" provides "null 

effects in pest's nervous system eliminating the ability for nonnal 

response systern to register a survival reaction"; and the further claim 

that the pest "shuts do\'tn --it stops eating, drinking, producing". In 

cont rast , his findings were that the test anima·ts ga i ned 1-1eight as their: 

food and water intake did not vary greatly~ no abnonnal behavior \vas 

observed; tt'lo female rats conceived after the device v1as "on" and bore 

offspring though exposed to said device for approximately 23 days. 

Dr. Reierson's report "Performance of Electromagnetic Dev i ces 

Against Termites, Cockroaches and Flour Beetles" (Complainant Exilibit 13) 

gene r ally voices conclusions such as those arrived at by Or. Hol'lard. llo 
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biological effects under laboratory or field conditions were observed 

with any of. the devices tested a~ he therefore concluded that Hagna

Pulse, lloture Si1ield and Sigma (all electromagnetic devices) had no 

measurable effect on any of the insects tested and t hat they would.oave 

no effect on other structural or household insect pests. 

t-1onty•s \·ritness Dr. Clifford J. Sherry is an assistant pro

fes so r in the Biology Department of Tex.as A&~l University. At the r.:quest 

of l•lonty's he performed a series of tests involving The Eliminator, which 

\ he re ferred to as a device similar to Complainant Exhibit 15. His .study 

over a total period of 66 days dealt with the effect of The Elimi nator 

on eating. drinking, aggressive behavio r and general activity of Long

Evans hooded rats. He used tv~o sets of cages. Each set of two cages 

was connected toge t her by holl m·1 tubing. Each set of c<lges contained 

three ma le animals. The experiment was so set up as an attempt to stress 

· the ani rna is by llous i ng t ile'il so ti1ey v1ou 1 d be requi red to go through a 

smal l tube just large enough t o all ow passage of one animal at a t ime. 

For one set of animals The El iminator was present and turned on; for the 

other set The Eliminator \'las present and turned off. The second set was 

housed so as to eliminate the steady-state and pulsed magnetic field. He 

observed an iricrease in aggressive behavior in both sets of animals, but 

the increase ~seemed to be larger in the expe~imental animals, the ones 

exposed to The Eliminator". He acknO\'Iledged (T. 79) that being confined 

in small spaces will, in and of itself, produce a response of heightened·· 

aggressive behavior; ho\'lever, from observation, he noted a greater response 

in the group in the box on which the subject device \'las turned on. One 

such observation was rapid cannibalization even though food and water was 

available whi~1 he interpreted as the result of increased aggressiveness . 

. No changes were noted in eating, drinking or in the level of general 

activity. He concluded ti1at it was not clear that the animals attempted 
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to avoid the effects of The Eliminator; that ti1e responses observed could 

have been ·attributable to some aspect of their environr.12n t of which he was 

una·,:are. Or. Sherry did not know what caused the death of four experi

mental animals, three of \'thich were found in the shielded cage a~d one in 

the unshielded cage (Complainant Exhibit 16; T.94). Or. Sherry stated 

that due to the size of the sample used by him and the time length 

of the tests conducted by him, his findings \'tere inco.1clusive (when 

questione~ as to \'lhether rats could be eliminated by use of subject 

device--The Eliminator). He further stated (T. 100) that if it were 
. 

shown that The Eliminator does, in fact, increase aggressive behavior 

in the t est animals, he believes they would tend to avoid that s1tuation. 

No:1ty's Exhibits D, E, F, G and Hare 13 letters from purchasers 

of "Tile Eliminator" \'lho commend its use v1iti1 varying degrees of enthusiasm, 

~ut 1·1i1o , in each instance give it a positive endorseliient. 

In consideration of the foregoing, and based on t~e fonnal 

record made herein, 1 make the following 

FlNDliiGS OF FACT 

1. l·lonty's Environmental Services, lnc. (Monty's) is a Texas 

corporation domiciled in Houston, Harris County, Texas (T. 4). 

2. Nonty's engages in the business of producing and selling 

"The Eliminator", an electronic device manufactured by it to control rats, 

mice and insect pests. 

3. Monty's product, "The Eliminator" is a device as that tenn 

is defined in Section 2(h), 7 U.S.C. 136(h) . 

4. The Federal Insecticide , Fungicide and Rodenticide Act does 

not require that pesticide devices be pre-market tested for efficacy or 

safety (1. 31}. 
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5. i•lonty •s claims ar,d represents by a brochure distributed at 
• 

a livestock sho·,., on Fei>ruary 25, 1979 tnat the target pests (to be con-

trolled) do not have to coiile in direct contact \'litil its device whose 

effective range is up to 150 feet radius (Complainant Exi1ibit 2) ana that 

said device creates a magnetic field which creates nervous disorientation 

in certain lower animals and insects and thereby brings about their death 

(Complainant Exhibit 2, page 4). 

6. On anoti1er ~rochure (~lonty•s Exhibit B; T. 70), dated 1979, 

11onty •s claims and represents that said device ... controls rats and mice 

infestation continually witi1out poisons" and "creates nervous disorienta-

tation in r ats and mice and there~y brings about tileir continued elimination 

in ti1e affected area" . 

7. At t~e request of t~e US EPA, t~e Hational Bureau of 

Standards (i'JBS) Center fot- Consume r Product iecill1ology, evaluated eight 

n~od~ls of electromagnetic pest controllers to ci1 aracterize any detectable 

electro;riagnetic output (as opp_osed to biological testing done oy others). 

Visual and X-ray inspection an:J el ~ctromagnetic measure:r.ents 

c:; llo· . .,.ed the units can be grouped into tvw categories based on character-

istics of the output signal--the principal c;1aracteristics being either a 

pulse output or a 60Hz ac output. For the pu)se output device, no 

significant external EMF was found. The 60 Hz units were f ound to generate 

detectable magnetic fields. 

UBS \.,tas also requested to determine if models have any commonalty 

of thei r outputs v1hich vtould allm1 grouping or classifying of similar 

units for biological testing; and determine the feasibility of developing 

a standard test me thod for classifying units based on tile nature of the 

output. A report issued March 1979 (Complainant Exhibit 9) demonstrate 

that their efforts were directed to c~nplying with US EPA ' s request. 
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8. T~e Eliminator pest control device (EPA Sample No. 150198) 

manufact ured by lionty's was t he subject of a limited exan;in~tion by t he 

i~BS in 11as:1i ngton , D.C. on or about t'lay 9, 1979, cons i s ting of a laboratory 

test for any 60 Hz electromagneti c field from the unit. i~o such si"gnifi

cant E!1F o,.1as detected, but it \'laS determined to be a pul s e output device, 

herei nafter referred to as toe Pulse Group, or as Group One (T. 107). 

9. Said examination, above, f urther consis ted of removal of the 

back of the unit for i~terna1 examinat ion by noting visually the integrated 

circui t components. 

10 . Ti1 e cor.~ponents noted in "The Eliminator" (EP.I\ Sample 150198) 

1·.~re identified as t ile same number and type as those contaiAed in the 

1·\agna -Pulse and .~ature Shield pest control devices (T. 133) \·lhicil , witi1 

"The Eliminator" , were classified as pulse oper~ting devices (pulse group) 

(T. 105 and 105) or Group One (T. 107). Tile Eliminator is a 9 -volt unit , 

dral'ling f r om a conver ter t ha t converts fro:n llS volts, uO Hz to 9 volts . 

T.1e llature Si1ield and i-lagna- Pulse \'iere battet·y op:1·ated (de) units, 12 volt 

~upply . 

11. Though the subj ect Elinlinator, tested by ilBS, i1ad only a 
I 
I 

single load coil, where the ~1agna-Pulse and :~ature Si1iel d had t i1ree load 

coils, all three units contained tile same number of components and t i1e 

detected output--pul ses --was in t he same order of magni tude (T. 133). 

i .e. , each produced practically identical magnetic fields of a l ow level 

in the 1/lOtil gauss range, at a distance of six inches from the unit (T. 

122). 

12. The f ie ld strength of eacn of the sub ject devices in tile 

pulse group decreased rapidly with distance from the unit. At a distance 

of six incl1es, the Ei~F is approximate ly 0.1 gauss, much less t i1an tne 

earth's field whic:1 approximates 0 .5 gauss . 
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13. NGS visually inspected the components of T~e Eliminator and 

t i1erefore i i ,.,.as not necessary to ·use X-ray . Co;nponents of the r-:agna-

Pulse and Nature Silield units 1·1e re X-rayed because ti1eir cc;nponents were 

encased in metal containers and potted in potting cora1pound; t i1us th.eir 

visual inspection without tl1e use of X-ray would have required destruction 

of the circuitry. 

14. Biological testing, us i ng the Nature Shield (Officia l Sample 

No. 131918) and bto Hagna-Pulse units (Official Sample No . 131919) were · 

conducted as hereinbefo~e described, supra , page 6 , us ing contr ol (yntreated) 

or unexposed) groups and test (exposed to EI1F) groups, indicated that said 

units and the EI'-1F by ti1e:n produced are i neffective in contro ll ing rodents, 

and, particularly, that said units are: 

a. ineffective in producing morta lity; 

b. ineffectiv'e in adve1·sely altering feeding, 
drinking and other benavior; 

c. in~ffectiv::! in preventing f01::ale rodents 
from conceiving and reproducing. 

further, said tests warranted ti11: conc lusion ti1at ti1e devices, function ing 

and in good working order , do not in any way live up to claims of t~eir 

manufactu rers and distr i butors of providing control of rodents or insects 

(Complainant Exhibits 11, 12, and 13). 

15 . Rodents and insects are short- lived and it is not unusual 

for them to die in both test and control groups for unexplainable r easons 

(Comp lainant Exhibit 11 , p. 6; Exitibit 12, p. 5; and Exi1ibit 13 , p. 18). 

CO.ICLUS I Q;~s OF LAH 

1. "The Eliminator 11 produced by r·:onty's is a c!evice as that 

tennis defined by Section 2(h), 7 U.S.C. 136(il). 
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2 . The biological testing done on the EHF devices, ~1aJna -Pulse 

and l:ature · s~ ie l d, \"lllich , with "The Elimina t or", \·tere classified as devices 

(a) having the san;e numbe r and type of components; (b) having a pulse 

output (HlF) of t he same magnitude, and ( c) which produce magnetic f~elds 

t hat are of a lovt level, in t i1e tenth gauss (0.1 gauss) range , is deter-

minative of the efficacy of "The Eliminator" i n the control of rats, mice • 

. r oaches and silverfish; and whether it affo r ds an effective con trol of 

pests generally . 
\ 

3. On the basis of the evide nce and on ~he facts found here i n, 

The Eliminator is a device that i s ineffective when used t o trap, destroy, 

repel or mi tigate ra ts , mice , r oaches and other target pests. 

4. i·lonty's product , "The Eliminator ", is misoranded in that 

it3 l abeling {Monty ' s Exhibit B) bea r s statemen ts and graphic representa-

tions ~1i1ici1 are false and misleading. Complainant Exi1ibit 2 , p . 3 anfr 4 , 

a brochure distributed at a lifestock si10.,.1, \·lllile tech nically not labeling, 

is relevant t o the sa l ient issue herein and can properly be cons idered in 

de t ermining the meaning of lang~age in i~onty 's rep1·esentation appearing 

on sa id labe ling . 

5 . 1-lon ty's, .,.1i1en it distributed, sold, offered for sale, held 

for sale o r offered to deliver "The Eliminator". violated Section 12(a){l)(F) 

of t he Federal I nsect ici de, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act , as amended, 

(7 U.S . C. 136j(a)(l)( F)). 

6 . For its violation of FI FRA, Nanty's should be subject to 

and it is here inbelow assessed, an appropriate c ivil penalty. 

7. By reason of f acts f ound and the conc lusions r eached herein 

as to t ile inefficacy of Honty's product "The Eliminato1·", i t is furti1er 

concluded , held and adjudged, that t:1e Stop Sa l e , Use and Removal Order, 
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dated June 13, 1979 {Complainant Exhibit 4) was validly issued {Section 

.. 
· 13, F I FAA)· and should not be dis tu.rbed. 

DISCUSS I Oil 

The parties agree that the sole or core issue to be de termined 

is whether subject device is effective, as r epresented by Monty ' s, for 

the destruction or control of rodents or ot~er pests. 

Respondent insists \hat Compl ainant has failed in its proof 

because it has not (biologically) tested Monty's rodent control device 

(so as to provide direct proof of its efficacy). It characterizes t :1e 

tests of !4SS, testified to by Mr. Charles Gordon, as fo1l 01·1S: 

"The Government , by its 0\·m principles of 
classification, has dete rmined for itself sim;>ly 
that "The El imina tor" fits into the category of 
electro~agnetic control devi ces , and that, since 
t1·10 cevices other than The Eliminator, and \·:l1ich 
have been similarly classified, were tested for 
~1eir effects on rodents by professionals at tnc 
University of California at Davis and found wanting, 
Tile Eliminator must be found \'Ianting also." 

Respondent correctly states the basis on \>lhicil t:1e determina -

tion das made , but then seeks t o make that basis suspec t by suggesting 

that NBS indicated differences "bet\'leen the elect romagnetic properties 

and capabili ties of The Eliminator" and the oti"1e r devices . 

With this contention 1 do not agree. Hr . Gordon testified 

that the t hree devices: 

{1) were tested and determined to be in the pulse group 

(group one) (T. 106); 

(2} have the same nua1ber and type of components {T. 107); 

(3) have an EMR output--pulses--in the same order of magni

tude--that. when measured at a finite distance ' a ... ~ay (six i nches) ti1ey 
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produce magnetic fields that are of a low level, in tile tentil gauss 

(0 .1 gauss.frange (T. 122). 

11r. Gordon further testified that ti1e components found in the 
• 

three devices were not sophisticated, and could be obtained in the market 

place. Respondent's contention places un\'tarranted emphasis on the state

ment that some variation can exist between the respective units in their 

pulse-field output because the components used are commonly plus or minus 

20 percent in accuracy. \he testimony stresses that all are in tile same 

order of magnitude -- "I mean if it (field-detected at six inches) Js . 
0.1 gauss, t he other won't be ·0.5 or 1 gauss." It is apparent that said 

testimony of a "variance" in the pulse-field output of 0.1 gaus~ {1/5 of 

the ENF of the earth) is not indicative of a "diffe1·ence" in the devices. 

Further, said testimony establishes that tne field strength decreases 

r apidly with distance from the unit. If tiH~ distance is incr eased to 

20 time:; {10 f eet) the field is decreased to 1/8000 of that existing at 

six inches {T. 112). 14i1en the distance is inc:·eased to 150 feet (the 

rad ius within whici) Rbspondent claims efficacy for his device) it is 

obvious that though a variance, if present, persists, even to the extent 

suggested, the similarity is so substantial that no actual difference is 

discernable. - (See Lever Bros. v Atlas Assur. Co., 131 F. 2d, 770 l.c. 

777(11) (CA 7, 1942)) . 

Or. Howard undertook the biological testing of the other pulse 

group devices (i1agna-Pulse and Nature Shield) for US EPA. His under-

taking, as outlined supra, pages 6 and 7, was with the restriction ''as 

l ong as we cou ld devote our research to testing the principle and the 

concept" (T. 144). He further stated: 

" ... we learned, in the ultrasonic devices to test 
the principle and tile concept and then a 11 of the 
ne·t~ devices \'lill fall into the sa1ne general category, 
and you do not have to repeat the expensive and time
consuming laboratory work .• • ". 
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It then became apparent tilat proof of the inefficacy of other and 

further dev·i,es \'10u1d be based on <;it'CUinstantial evidence as in tl1e 

instant case. Once biological testing determined t ile effect and capa

bilities of electromagnetic devices of the categories tested, tile 
• 

principle and concept enunciated by a biological test on one or mor~ of 

the devices of a particular class or category is controll ing as to the 

efficacy or inefficacy of a 11 such devices so categor ized . Tlle function 

of tms was to perfonn tests to determine on ly the classification category, 

or group, of a subject d~vice. As evidenced by Or. Howurd's reports 

(Complainant Exhibits 11 and 12), his biologica.l testing was objectively 

carried out under very controlled conditions with the ccnclusion that the 

t\-10 devices tested, (and any electromagnetic device) "cannot ef.fectively 

control rodents in a warehouse , in a house, or in fields"; that any such 

device is worthless for contro l of rodents (T. 152). 

In consideration of ti1e bio logical fir.dings presented and tlte 

further te.;ts of NuS cl assifying t11e Eliminator (based on its emissions 

1. 34) in the same grouping as t ;12 test devices, it follows that any 

conclusions reached as to inefficacy of the Hag~a-Pulse and Mature Shield 

are equally applicable to "The Eliminator" . 

"Circumstantial evidence" is evidence \',;,icil , ~.,ithou t going 

directly to prove the existence of a fact, give ri se to a logical inference 

that such fact does exist . Facts in issue may be proved either by 

"direct" evidence or "i nd irect" (circulllstantial) evidence . (See United 

Textile \~orkers of Amer, AFL-CIO v Newberry Mills, Inc . , 238 FS 366, 

l.c . 372 (WDSC 1965)). 

In order to establish the existence of fact, direct evidence 

is not required. Circulllstantial evidence is not only sufficient. i.>ut 

in some instances may be more certain and satisfying and n1ore persuasive 
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than direc t evidence. {Rogers v t·lo . Pac. R. Co., 352 US 500 77 S.Ct 

443, 1.c. '4.49, note 17 (1957); Ni c,ha li c v Cleve l and Tankers, Inc . , 3, 

US 325 , 81 S. Ct. 6, l.c. 11 (5) (1960)). 

On this record I find Or. Clifford Sherry's tes ts (descri t 

supra, pages 8 and 9) to be inconclus i ve as to the efficacy of the s 

devices tested by him (T. 101 and 169). I have also considered the 

testimonia l s pre\ented by ~1onty ' s as ~lonty ' s Exhibits 0, E, F, G, an 

As previously observed, supra, page 9 ilereof , an absence or mitigati 

of the target pests , without more, is there reported. littl e weight 

any, can be accord!d t ilis evidence , as no expianation for such obser1 

is presented other t han the pt·esumption a r ising f rom t:1e presence of 

subject device . Tl1 i s presumption is amply rebutted in this r ecord by 

sho~·ling of tlle i nefficacy of subject dev ice and lil:e devices emittin£ 

electromagnetic r adi at i on (Hi~). Addi tionally, I find that the abate 

·noted in suci1 t estimony can possibly be attributed to mat1y causes otri 

tilan EMR, such as t he seasonal populatior. fluctuation (T. 158) , t:1e s 

durat i on of tile 1 ife of such pests (T. l SO) and t ile facts present or 

impl i cit in t he record that chemical pesticides 1·1ere in fact previous 

app 1 i ed in many , if not a 11 ,of t ile premises described. 

CIVIL PErMLTY 

In determining the amount of t he penalty to be assessed , Sec 

l4(a)(3) of the Statute (7 U.S .C. 136l(a)(3)) requires tl1a t there shall 

considered the appropriateness of t he penalty to t i1e size of Responder 

business. t he effe ct on Respondent's ability t o continue in business a 

the gravity of the violation . Section l68.60(b) of t;le Rules of Pract 

provides that in evaluati ng the gravity of the violati on t i1ere also be 

cons idered Respondent's nistory of compliance ~tit i1 tile Act and any evi · 

of good faitil or lack t he reof. The Rules of Practi ce furt:1er provide, 
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Section 168.46(b), that "t:1e Adli1inistrative La1·1 Judge may at his .. 
discretion· i ncrease or decrease the assessed penalty from the amount 

proposed in the Complaint". 

• 
In ti1e instant record , one of the preliminary matters raised 

prior t o hearing was tl1e announcement t ha t a stipulation by the Complainant 

. (\·lho offered an amendment to the instant complaint reducing V1e proposed 

penalty sought t i1ere in from $2,4'v5 .00 to $1 ,250.00) and the Respondent 

to the effect ti1at t he appropriate penalty for a Category II vio l ator 

(under the guidelines) is $1 ,250.00. 

have considered t i1e Statute and t ile Regulations pertinent 

hereto, and find ti1at til e penalty stipu-lated to, ir. the event the viola-

tion is found to have occurred as charged, is not inappropriate or 

unreasonab1e. Having furt:1er considered tile entire record and based on 

the Findings of Fact and Conclusions hereir, , 1 propose that a civil 

penalty in the sum of Sl ,250.00 be assessed against t:1e Respondent. 

This Initial Decision and ti1e follm·ling proposed Final Order 

assessi ng a civil penalty s r. all become t he Final Order of ti1e Regional 

Administrator unl ess appealed or revie1o~ed by the Regional Administrator 

as provided in 40 CFR 168. 46(c) : 

11FWAL ORDER 

Pursuant to Section 14(a)(l) of t ile Federal Insecticide, 

Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, as amended (7 U.S . C. 136l_(A)(l), a civil 

penalty of $1 ,250.00 is assessed against Respondent Nonty•s Environmental 

Services, Inc., for violati ons of said Act \'Jhich ilave been esta!.Jlished on 

the basis of Complaint issued herein, and Re s pondent is ordered to pay 

same by Cashier's or Certified Ci1eck , payable to the United States 

Treasury. within s ixty (60) days of t he receip t of this ordet·; it is 
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further ordered ti1at the Stop Sale, Use and Re;noval Order dated June 13, 
~ 

1979 (Co;nplainant Exhibit 4) shall r emain in full force and effect ." 

r..lh 
This Initial Decision i s signed and filed this.:;- day of 

• 
December , 1979, in Kansas City, Missouri. 

·. ALJ 

\ 

. \ 


